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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
7 Middle Street

	Historic Name:
Morrison & Mary J. Proctor House

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1865

	Source:  
historic maps, deeds

	Style/Form:   
Undetermined

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
stone

	Wall/Trim:  
vinyl clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


none

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Additions on rear

Vinyl clapboards added


Window sash replaced




	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:    0.07 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the west side of Middle Street just south of the former Engine House No. 1 at the corner of Middle and West Main Street. The area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Morrison & Mary J. Proctor House is a two-story wood frame dwelling located on the west side of Middle Street south of West Main Street.  With its gable end oriented to the street and principal façade facing north, its plan conforms to middling urban housing constructed during the 19th century, much of it multiple-family in use.  Numerous houses of this type were owned by or rented to factory workers.  Built after the Civil War, the design of the building no longer reflects the Greek Revival taste with features such as Classical entablatures with tall friezes and trabeated entrances.  The street façade contains two tiers windows with a single window centered in the attic.  The entrance is positioned in the center of the north side within an added vestibule under a porch entered from the street and terminating at the projecting north wall of a kitchen ell.  The north wall contains numerous windows grouped in a pattern indicating a three-room interior plan.  A second enclosed porch is attached to the west end of the north wall containing a secondary entrance to the kitchen.  A later addition on the rear appears to have been made for a bathroom.
The house is centered in the lot’s narrow frontage with a paved parking area on the north side and a grassy driveway on the south side leading to a small shed.  A small yard is in the rear of the lot.  
The Morrison & Mary J. Proctor House is an example of a mid-19th-century shoe worker’s dwelling associated with Georgetown’s industrial development.  Built ca. 1865, with its narrow gable end oriented to the street, the house was sited in the mode of urban examples of this type.  The building is a contributing component of the village district.     

HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
Originally called Bacon Street, Middle Street in Georgetown is shown as an unlabeled street with ten buildings on it on the 1856 map of Georgetown center. It appears that the subject property was part of a parcel fronting on West Main Street and containing Holmes & Noyes Shoe Manufactory.  In April 1864, the town of Georgetown deeded the parcel on which 7 Middle Street now stands to Bradford-born shoe worker Morrison Proctor, the 1535 square feet having been part of a larger parcel the town had acquired from David P. Holmes less than two years earlier upon which Engine House No. 1, at 5 Middle Street, then stood.
  The 1870 census shows Proctor with $1200 in real estate, indicating that by the time the enumeration was made he was almost certainly living at 7 Middle Street. The price Proctor paid for the property in 1864—only $66.60—suggests that no house stood upon it, and no building is mentioned in the deed. 
Born about 1833, Morrison Proctor was the son of George H. A. Bachelder of Haverhill and Martha B. Perley of Dunbarton, New Hampshire. In March 1844 the state permitted him to change his name from Proctor Perley Batchelor to Morrison Proctor, by which name he is shown in his 1850 Haverhill record of marriage to Mary J. Sawyer Winter of Groveland, who had been married before.
 Proctor was then a shoemaker living in Georgetown. In 1851 Proctor again changed his name, to Maurice Henrie Proctor, but censuses and directories regularly show him by the name he took in 1844.

Proctor served as a private in Company A of the Seventeenth Massachusetts Infantry Regiment in 1864, but for only eighteen days; why his term was so short is not yet known. By 1870 he had returned to Georgetown and was shown in the census as a shoe factory worker; he lived in the Middle Street house with his wife, shown as Jane, and daughter Carrie Little Proctor, born in Georgetown in 1856.
 In 1877 Carrie Proctor married Haverhill clerk John V. Woodcock, and the 1880 census shows Morrison Proctor and his wife Mary Jane in the 7 Middle Street house. He was, as the 1870 directory stated, a boot stitching machine operator, and by 1885 the directory shows him as a wax thread operator, probably the same occupation.
In 1883 Mary Jane Proctor died at the age of fifty-six, and Morrison Proctor remained in the 7 Middle Street house until his own death in February 1895, most if not all of that time with the family of his daughter Carrie and son-in-law John V. Woodcock, who in the mid-1880s was the yardmaster for the Boston and Maine Railroad in Haverhill. The Woodcocks’ eldest child, Annie Rebecca, was born in Georgetown in 1878; the next, Florence, was born in Haverhill in 1879; Charles Ernest, was born in Bradford in 1881; and children Jane, Otis Henry, Tina Sawyer, Bertha, Edward Stuart, and Carrie Proctor were born in Georgetown between 1884 and 1896. Carrie Proctor Woodcock died less than two weeks after the birth of her daughter, named for her, in 1896; the infant herself died in early August of the same year. Carrie Woodcock’s death left her husband with eight underage children, the youngest being two years old; what immediately became of most of these children is not yet known. The 1901 directory shows John V. Woodcock, still employed by the Boston and Maine, on Middle Street, though the 1900 census shows him in the Haverhill home of his brother Charles F. Woodcock, a liquor dealer and restaurateur, without any of his children. By 1910, however, both he and his son Otis were among six lodgers in the Merrimac home of Thomas Chaff, a car barn foreman; John V. Woodcock worked for Chaff, while Otis worked as an automobile factory trimmer.
In 1901 the Woodcocks’ son Charles, then a shoemaker living in Georgetown, married Mary J. Poyner, a Needham native then working as a mill operative in Ipswich; he was nineteen, and his parents’ consent to the marriage was filed with the Ipswich town clerk. Seven months later the couple’s daughter Florence Rachel was born in Georgetown. In 1905 he and his wife were living at 7 Middle Street with their daughter Florence, and he was working as a shoe factory cutter, in 1914 for Georgetown Boot and Shoe Company and in 1918 for W. S. Chase in Haverhill.  By 1932, when the family still lived at 7 Middle, Charles Woodcock was a cutter for Arlington Shoe Company in Lawrence.
In 1911, 1912, 1914, and 1915 John V. Woodcock and his surviving children deeded their interest in 7 Middle Street to Mary Jane Poyner Woodcock, Charles’s wife.
 Charles Ernest Woodcock died in 1957 at the age of seventy-five, and his widow remained in the house until she sold it in 1960; she died three years later. The property changed hands four more times through October 1984, when current owner Robert G. Maimone acquired it.
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Morrison & Mary J. Proctor House is an example of a mid-19th-century shoe worker’s dwelling associated with Georgetown’s industrial development.  Built ca. 1865, with its narrow gable end oriented to the street, the house was sited in the mode of urban examples of this type.  The building is a contributing component of the village district.     

� Town of Georgetown to Morrison Proctor, 28 April 1864, SED 665:293; David P. Holmes to town of Georgetown, 12 August 1862, SED 643:136. The town deed another parcel of 798 square feet to Proctor in April 1870, bringing the total lot to .04 acre at that time. See Town of Georgetown to Morrison Proctor, 25 April 1870, SED 796:200.The latter deed transferred the land “with a certain building standing thereon, known as Engine house no 1” for $583.54.


� Her death record shows her father as William Sawyer of West Newbury and Joanna Pickett of Georgetown.


� List of Persons Whose Names Have Been Changed in Massachusetts. 1780-1883 (Boston: Wright & Potter, 1885), 104, 131.


� The 1870 Essex County directory shows Proctor as a stitching machine operator living on Maple Street; the location is almost certainly an error.


� Florence M. Russell to Mary J. Woodcock, 30 December 1912, SED 2189:493; Bertha Cutts, Stoneham, to Mary J. Woodcock, 11 July 1914, SED 2267:457; John V. Woodcock, Hannah P. Woodcock, Otis H. J. Woodcock, all of Haverhill, and Jennie M. Minchin, wife of Daniel R. Minchin, Georgetown, to Mary J. Woodcock, 21 December 1911, SED 2121:396; Annie R. Woodcock , Ellsworth ME, and Tina S. Woodcock to Mary J. Woodcock, 20 March 1912, SED 2139:5; and Edward W. Jackson to Mary J. Woodcock, 1 September 1915, SED 2307:66. This last deed notes that Jackson had, like his grandfather, changed his name legally from Edward S. Woodcock.


� Mary J. Woodcock to Florence W. Primrose, 4 May 1960, SED 4663:107; J. Bradford Brooks, Haverhill, to Robert G. Maimone, 31 October 1984, SED 7566:413.
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